IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 78,686

BARRY HOFFMAN,

Appellant,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA.

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT
FOR THE FOURTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT,
IN AND FOR DUVAL COUNTY, FLORIDA

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

LARRY HELM SPALDING
Capital Collateral Representative
Florida Bar No. 0125540

M. ELIZABETH WELLS
Assistant CCR
Florida Bar No. 0866067

JOHN S. SOMMER
Staff Attorney
Florida Bar No. 0862126

OFFICE OF THE CAPITAL COLLATERAL
REPRESENTATIVE
1533 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32301
(904) 487-4376

COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

On September 7, 1980, Frank Ihlenfeld, a 54 year old narcotics trafficker and Linda Sue Parrish, a 20 year old prostitute were murdered in their motel room at the Ramada Inn in Jacksonville Beach, Florida. An intensive investigation that included wiretaps and undercover operatives was undertaken, and the investigation focused on Jamee Provost, who was suspected of having procured the murders (PC-R2. 24-25). The investigation ultimately resulted in the arrest of Barry Hoffman, a heroin addict, caught up in the drug world to support his habit. Mr. Hoffman was under the influence of narcotics when apprehended and questioned, and without counsel present gave statements that purported to be incriminating (PC-R2. 40).

Mr. Hoffman was indicted on two counts of murder on October 28, 1981, and was later charged by information with conspiracy in March of 1982. The cases were consolidated upon the State's motion (R, 37). On June 28, 1982, the Court accepted Mr. Hoffman's pleas of guilty to two counts of first degree murder, and agreed to sentence him to two concurrent life sentences with the conspiracy charge nolle prossed (R. 78). As part of the plea agreement, Mr. Hoffman was to testify against Mr. Mazzara in exchange for a guilty plea with a life sentence. Without adequate investigation, Mr. Hoffman's attorney, Richard Nichols, "advised" him to take the plea in order to avoid a capital trial, Mr. Hoffman was interviewed, without counsel present, by Michael Obringer, who would later prosecute Mr. Hoffman (PC-R2. 10). Mr. Hoffman testified at Mazzara's trial only to his innocence (PC-R2. 10-12). Subsequently, an uncounseled Mr. Hoffman withdrew his plea without counsel, Mr. Nichols, present again (PC-R2. 15, 17-18). The plea was withdrawn on September 24, 1982, after Mr. Nichols withdrew as counsel (R. 52, PC-R2. 2).

Mr. Jack Harris, an airline pilot, was then appointed to represent Mr. Hoffman; this was Mr. Harris' first capital case. Mr. Harris was unaware of Mr. Hoffman's extensive drug problem, documented in his unobtained Air Force medical records (PC-R2. 40). Mr. Hoffman received an honorable discharge due to his heroin addiction problems. Id. Mr. Harris was also unaware of Mr.

Hoffman's secreting and using of drugs in jail just prior to involuntary statements being taken. Id. In fact, Mr. Harrie never realized that several hours of wiretap recordings used in a drug investigation were potentially critical and relevant to Mr. Hoffman's defense. Id.

The trial took place in January, 1983. Mr. Hoffman was convicted of one count of first degree murder, one count of second degree murder, and one count of conspiracy (R. 120-21). The penalty phase was conducted on January 20, 1983. Mr. Hoffman made a brief statement to the jury. No witnesses were presented by defense counsel. The jury recommended death (R. 122). The court imposed a sentence of death on February 11, 1983 (R. 127). In its finding of fact, Mr. Hoffman's trial court found the aggravating circumstance of heinous, atrocious, and cruel without notice or an opportunity to be heard by Mr. Hoffman (R. 134). In addition, the trial court belittled the statutory mitigating factor of no significant history of conviction of prior criminal activity, stipulated to by the State and the defense, because Mr. Hoffman was a drug abuser (R. 135). Mr. Hoffman was also sentenced to 100 years imprisonment for the second degree murder conviction (R. 128), and 30 years imprisonment for the conspiracy conviction (R. 140). This Court affirmed on direct appeal. Hoffman v. State, 474 So. 2d 1178 (Fla. 1985).

Mr. Hoffman's first postconviction motion and accompanying appendix were filed on October 2, 1987. In less than one week, the circuit court summarily denied this motion in a one-line order on October 7, 1987 (PC-R1. 290). Mr. Hoffman's motion for rehearing was pending before the circuit court for over a year before it was denied. On February 8, 1989, Mr. Hoffman filed a timely notice of appeal. This Court reversed saying:

In the case below, Hoffman came forward with allegations based on affidavits and other information clearly establishing colorable claims under rule 3.850. For example, he has alleged that the state withheld the names of other persons who purportedly confessed to the murders of which Hoffman was convicted. At argument, the state conceded that such a claim, if valid, would require relief under Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83, 83 S.Ct. 1194, 10 L.Ed.2d 215 (1963). Hoffman also has alleged claims of ineffective assistance of counsel and the failure of counsel to be present when Hoffman testified in the separate trial of his co-conspirator.

Without reaching the merits of any of these claims, we nevertheless believe that a hearing is required under rule 3.850. In its summary order, the trial court stated no rationale for its rejection of the present motion. It failed to attach to its order the portion or portions of the record conclusively showing that relief is not required and failed to find that the allegations were inadequate or procedurally barred.

The state argued that the entire record is attached to the order in the Court file before us, thus fulfilling this requirement. However, such a construction of the rule would render its language meaningless. The record is attached to every case before this Court. Some greater degree of specificity is required. Specifically, unless the trial court's order states a rationale based on the record, the court is required to attach those specific parts of the record that directly refute each claim raised.

We thus have no choice but to reverse the order under review and remand for a full hearing conforming to rule 3.850.

Finally, Hoffman also petitions us to reverse a denial of access to state attorney records he requested under chapter 119, Florida Statutes (1987). At argument the state conceded that this issue was reolved in favor of Hoffman by our recent opinions in State v. Kokal, 562 So.2d 324 (Fla.1990), and Provenzano v. Duvaer, 561 So.2d 541 (Fla.1990). Under these opinions, Hoffman clearly is entitled to access these records.

We reverse the court below and remand for further proceedings in conformity with this opinion and with Kokal and Provenzano. On remand, the trial court shall allow Hoffman thirty days to amend his petition, computed from the date the state delivers to Hoffman the records to which he is entitled under chapter 119.

Hoffman v. State, 571 So. 2d 449 (Fla 1990) (emphasis in original).

Pursuant to this Court's order, Mr. Hoffman filed an amended motion to vacate on June 17, 1991, within thirty days of partial Chapter 119 disclosures. The State filed no response. The court again signed an order summarily denying Mr. Hoffman 3.850 relief (quoted in full):

This matter was considered upon the motion for postconviction relief filed by the defendant, June 17, 1991. It affirmatively appears from a reading of the motion that it is legally insufficient to justify relief under Rule 3.850 of the Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure and it is, therefore,

ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that the defendant's motion for postconviction relief is hereby DENIED.

THE DEFENDANT IS HEREBY ADVISED THAT HE HAS THE RIGHT TO APPEAL THE DENIAL OF HIS MOTION, PROVIDED SUCH APPEAL IS FILED WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS FROM THE DATE OF THIS ORDER.

DONE AND ORDERED in Chambers, at Jacksonville, Duval County, Florida, this 26th day of August, 1991.

(PC-R2. 119) (emphasis added). This order was clearly a form order used by the circuit court to routinely deny Rule 3.850 motions. After this Court ruled that Mr. Hoffman's motion to vacate "clearly establish[ed] colorable claims under Rule 3.850" and "that a hearing is required under Rule 3.850," the circuit court denied Mr. Hoffman relief because it "appears from a reading of the motion [to vacate] that it is legally insufficient to justify relief under Rule 3.850."

Prior to filing the amended motion to vacate, Mr. Hoffman had received some of the files ordered by this Court in Hoffman v. State, 571 So. 2d 449 (Fla. 1990), but not all. Mr. Hoffman had received from the Duval County State Attorney's office partial files on James White and Chris Sprinkle, and a one-inch thick file on Mr. Mazzara (PC-R2. 108). Mr. Mazzara had been tried and convicted on the same charges as Mr. Hoffman. The Duval County State Attorney's office denied Mr. Hoffman access to files on: Robert Alton, Keith Hodge, James "Bubba" Jackson, Jr., George "Rocco" Marshall, Leon McCumbers, Wayne "Bones" Merrill, and James Provost (PC-R2. 107). Mr. Hoffman also sought access to a sealed record in Robert Alton's circuit court file. However, the circuit court, despite a signed release, denied access. In addition, the State Attorney denied Mr. Hoffman access to their wire intercept file (PC-R2. 106; App. B). In a belated response to Mr. Hoffman's chapter 119 request, the Florida Department of Law Enforcement also denied Mr. Hoffman access to their wire intercept file (App. E). The Duval County jail provided no records of Mr. Hoffman (PC-R2. 106). Likewise, the Duval County Sheriff's Office provided no files on Mr. Hoffman. Id. However, the circuit court in summarily denying Mr. Hoffman's motion to vacate refused to enforce Chapter 119.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

1. On 2 October 1987, Mr. Hoffman filed a motion to vacate, and within one week the trial court in a form order summarily denied Mr. Hoffman relief. In Hoffman v. State, 571 So. 2d 449 (Fla. 1990), this Court ruled that Mr. Hoffman had "clearly establish[ed] colorable claims under Rule 3.850"

and this Court "remand[ed] for a full hearing conforming to Rule 3.850." Hoffman, 571 So. 2d at 450. However, without stating "a rationale based on the record" or "attach[ing] those specific parts of the record that directly refute each claim raised," the trial court again summarily denied Mr. Hoffman relief after a reading of Mr. Hoffman's amended motion to vacate. Mr. Hoffman requests that this court again order a full hearing, but fairness to Mr. Hoffman and judicial economy require a new judge be assigned.

2. Regarding Fla. Stat. Chapter 119, Mr. Hoffman still has not received full compliance by the State. The Jacksonville State Attorney's Office has still denied access to many files critical to Mr. Hoffman's defense, including files on suspects, and codefendants. In addition, the State Attorney's Office and the Florida Department of Law Enforcement have denied Mr. Hoffman access to their respective wire intercept files. The State Attorney's Office only turned over partial files on Mr. Mazzara and Mr. White, co-defendants tried and convicted for the same crime as Mr. Hoffman. In addition the circuit court has refused to release Mr. Alton's sealed circuit court records -- despite a signed release by Mr. Alton. Mr. Hoffman respectfully requests this Court to order the State to fully comply with Chapter 119 before Mr. Hoffman receives an evidentiary hearing.

3. The State failed to disclose critical impeachment and exculpatory evidence, in violation of Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83 (1963) and its progeny. For example, as this Court noted in Hoffman: "[Mr. Hoffman] has alleged that the State withheld the names of other persons who purportedly confessed to the murders of which Hoffman was convicted. At argument, the State conceded that such a claim, if valid, would require relief under Brady." Hoffman 571 So. 2d at 450. In addition, the State still has not fully complied *with* the dictates of Fla. Stat. §119. Mr. Hoffman requests this Court to reorder an evidentiary hearing, but before a new judge.

4. Without adequate investigation, Mr. Hoffman's trial attorney, Richard Nichols, "advised" Mr. Hoffman to plead guilty and testify against Mr. Mazzara to avoid the electric chair, regardless of guilt or innocence. Mr.

Nichols' conduct was unreasonable. Woodard v. Collins, 898 F. 2d 1027 (5th Cir. 1990). This bad lawyering left an uncounseled Mr. Hoffman in repeated unprotected contact with his future prosecutor, Mr. Obringer. Upon Mr. Nichols return, he learned Mr. Hoffman had proclaimed Mr. Hoffman's innocence at Mr. Mazzaras's trial, and Mr. Nichols withdrew as counsel. However, this was after Mr. Hoffman was unrepresented by counsel during critical stages of his proceedings, including numerous interviews with his future prosecutor and the pro se withdrawal of his acceptance of the plea offer. Mr. Hoffman never waived his right to counsel and consistently requested the assistance of counsel. Mr. Hoffman was the victim of not only bad lawyering (as in Woodard), but no lawyering. As ordered by this Court in Hoffman, an evidentiary hearing is required.

5. Mr. Hoffman received ineffective assistance of counsel at the guilt/innocence phase of his trial. Mr. Hoffman's court-appointed attorney was unaware of Mr. Hoffman's long-term drug addiction (including an honorable discharge from the army because of heroin addiction and the taking of drugs when involuntary statements were seized by the State in Jackson, Michigan), of other suspects (including those who confessed to the same crime as Mr. Hoffman's charge), of deals offered the State's star witness (George Marshall), of hairs clutched in the female victim's hands and type "O" blood found in the victim's hotel room that did not match Mr. Hoffman, Mr. White, or the victims. Mr. Hoffman's trial outcome was prejudiced, regardless of whether it was ineffective assistance of counsel and/or Brady violations. As this Court ordered, an evidentiary hearing is still required, but before a new trial judge.

6. Mr. Hoffman, a lifelong substance abuser dependent on numerous brain damaging drugs, was under the influence of narcotics at the time of his arrest and interrogation, and was rendered incapable of knowingly and voluntarily waiving Miranda rights. He in fact believed that he had preserved his right to silence by signing the waiver form provided to him by law enforcement personnel. His mental impairment was of such a severity that any

statements made during that time could not have been knowingly, intelligently, and voluntarily made. His attorney, however, failed to properly investigate and prepare, and therefore rendered prejudicially deficient assistance on this issue. An evidentiary hearing is necessary, on the basis of the facts alleged in the amended motion to vacate, in order for this claim to be properly resolved.

7. Mr. Hoffman's trial attorney, Mr. Harris, did not adequately prepare for penalty phase. This was Mr. Harris' first capital trial. Mr. Harris did not request Mr. Hoffman's school, hospital, military or any other records, and thus he was unaware of the extent of Mr. Hoffman's drug abuse. Witnesses of Mr. Hoffman's drug abuse were not asked to testify on this subject matter; adequate investigation simply did not occur. Statutory mitigating factors were lost. An evidentiary hearing must again be ordered by this Court, but before a new judge.

8. Without notice to or an opportunity to be heard by Mr. Hoffman, the trial court found the aggravating circumstance of heinous, atrocious and cruel. This lack of notice cut off Mr. Hoffman's ability to litigate the applicability of this aggravating factor and created "an impermissible risk that the adversary process may have malfunctioned in this case." Lankford v. Idaho, 111 S. Ct. 1723 (1991).

9. Mr. Hoffman's trial counsel rendered ineffective assistance during the penalty phase proceedings by failing to object to the trial court's improper instruction concerning the mitigating factors stipulated to by the State and the defense, to the prosecutor's argument which directly contravened the stipulation, or to the judge's bias concerning the mitigating factors applicable to Mr. Hoffman. Counsel's failures resulted in violations of the sixth, eighth, and fourteenth amendments, and an evidentiary hearing is necessary in order for this claim to be properly resolved.

10. During his closing arguments at the guilt-innocence and the penalty phase of trial, the prosecutor intentionally misstated facts, testified, manipulated evidence, and bolstered the credibility of the

government's witness, so infecting the proceedings as to make the conviction and sentence of death fundamentally unreliable. Trial counsel's failure to do anything at all about this pervasive prosecutorial misconduct was prejudicially deficient attorney performance. Here, there was no objection, no motion for mistrial, nothing. An evidentiary hearing is necessary.

11. The jury instructions regarding cold, calculated and premeditated were inadequate under Maynard v. Cartwright, 108 S. Ct. 1853 (1988).

12. The jury's sense of responsibility was improperly diminished under Caldwell v. Mississippi, 472 U.S. 320 (1985), Hitchcock v. Dugger, 481 U.S. 393 (1987) and Mann v. Dugger, 844 F. 2d 1446 (11th Cir. 1988) (en banc).

13. The jury was erroneously instructed that under Florida law Mr. Hoffman bore the burden of proving a life sentence was warranted.

ARGUMENT I

FOR A SECOND TIME, MR. HOFFMAN HAS BEEN DENIED AN ADVERSARIAL TESTING BY HIS RULE 3.850 TRIAL COURT'S SUCCESSIVE SUMMARY DENIAL OF MR. HOFFMAN'S MOTION TO VACATE WITHOUT AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING IN VIOLATION OF THIS COURT'S PRIOR RULING AND THE SUMMARY DENIALS WERE ERRONEOUS AS A MATTER OF LAW AND FACT.

In Mr. Hoffman's previous appeal from the summary denial of his motion to vacate, this Court stated:

In the case below, Hoffman came forward with allegations based on affidavits and other information clearly establishing colorable claims under rule 3.850. For example, he has alleged that the state withheld the names of other persons who purportedly confessed to the murders of which Hoffman was convicted. At argument, the state conceded that such a claim, if valid, would require relief under Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83, 83 S.Ct. 1194, 10 L.Ed.2d 215 (1963). Hoffman also has alleged claims of ineffective assistance of counsel and the failure of counsel to be present when Hoffman testified in the separate trial of his co-conspirator.

Without reaching the merits of any of these claims, we nevertheless believe that a hearing is required under rule 3.850. In its summary order, the trial court stated no rationale for its rejection of the present motion. It failed to attach to its order the portion or portions of the record conclusively showing that relief is not required and failed to find that the allegations were inadequate or procedurally barred.

The state argued that the entire record is attached to the order in the Court file before us, thus fulfilling this requirement. However, such a construction of the rule would render its language meaningless. The record is attached to every case before this Court. Some greater degree of specificity is required. Specifically, unless the trial court's order states a

rationale based on the record. the court is required to attach those specific warts of the record that directly refute each claim raised.

We thus have no choice but to reverse the order under review and remand for a full hearing conformina to rule 3.850.

Finally, Hoffman also petitions us to reverse a denial of access to state attorney records he requested under chapter 119, Florida Statutes (1987). At argument, the state conceded that thie issue was resolved in favor of Hoffman by our recent opinions in Stake v. Kokal, 562 So.2d 324 (Fla.1990), and Provenaano v. Duaaer, 561 So.2d 541 (Fla.1990). Under these opinions, Hoffman clearly is entitled to access these records.

We reverse the court below and remand for further proceedings in conformity with this opinion and with Kokal and provenzano. On remand, the trial court ehall allow Hoffman thirty days to amend his petition, computed from the date the state delivers to Hoffman the records to which he is entitled under chapter 119.

Hoffman, 571 So. 2d at 450 (emphasis added),

In response to thie Court's remand "for a full hearing conforming to rule 3.850," the circuit court again summarily denied Mr. Hoffman's amended motion to vacate (quoted in Eull):

This matter was considered upon the motion for postconviction relief filed by the defendant, June 17, 1991. It affirmatively appears from a reading of the motion that it is legally insufficient to justify relief under Rule 3.850 of the Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure and it is, therefore,

ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that the defendant's motion for postconviction relief is hereby DENIED.

THE DEFENDANT IS HEREBY ADVISED THAT HE HAS THE RIGHT TO APPEAL THE DENIAL OF HIS MOTION, PROVIDED SUCH APPEAL IS FILED WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS FROM THE DATE OF THIS ORDER.

DONE AND ORDERED in Chambers, at Jacksonville, Duval County, Florida, this 26th day of August, 1991.

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