FILED SID J. WHITE

## IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

MAR 20 1992

CLERK, SUPREME COURT.

By

Chief Deputy Clerk

BARRY HOFFMAN,

Appellant,

v.

CASE NO. 78,686

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE FOURTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR DUVAL COUNTY, FLORIDA

# ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

CAROLYN M. SNURKOWSKI ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL FLORIDA BAR NO. 158541

DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS THE CAPITOL TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-1050 (904) 488-0600

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

#

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

are completely refuted by the record and contrary to Hoffman's Hoffman maintained that he was not afraid of own testimony. Provost and Mazzara rather, he became a close confidant of Provost and agreed to work with Mazzara in exchange for five hundred dollars (to observe at the Ramada Inn whether and when Frank Ihlenfeld and Linda Sue Parrish left the Ramada Inn). Hoffman and his defense counsel had a course of conduct and a story they intended to present which did not include a domination theory. See Gore v. Dugger, 532 So. 2d 1048 (Fla. 1988), and Hill v. State, 515 So.2d 176 (Fla. 1987). At the penalty phase, Hoffman, in a sworn narrative, maintained his innocence and said that he was incapable of committing such crimes. He chase to portray himself as a regular person who dealt drugs on the side to supplement his income. Having "chosen" that which he desired to present, he cannot fault counsel for failing to "present" theories inconsistent with the aforenoted. See White v. State, supra, wherein this Court held, "trial counsel will not be found to be ineffective where he had to "fashion a defense compatible with defendant's testimony which did not include raising the intoxication (domination or other contrary) defense."

Based on the foregoing, the trial court was absolutely correct in summarily denying relief. The record reflects the course of conduct undertaken by Hoffman was his counsel and nothing suggested in the allegations challenging the effectiveness of counsel supports a finding that counsel rendered ineffective assistance as set forth in Strickland v. Washington, supra.

## ISSUE VIII

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN ITS APPLICATION OF THE AGGRAVATING FACTOR THAT THE MURDER WAS ESPECIALLY HEINOUS, ATROCIOUS OR CRUEL

Hoffman argues that albeit he argued the correctness of the trial court's finding that the murder was especially heinous, atrocious or cruel on direct appeal, the recent holding by the United States Supreme Court in Lankford v. Idaho, 500 U.S.

114 L.Ed.2d 173, 111 S.Ct. 1723 (1991), mandates reconsideration of the issue.

On appeal, Hoffman contended it was *error* for the trial court to consider this factor. This Court opined, in **Hoffman** v. State, 474 So.2d 1178, 1182 (Fla. 1985):

Hoffman also argues that the trial court erred in finding that the murder was especially heinous, atrocious or cruel even though the jury itself was not instructed on this particular aggravating circumstance. We fail to see how the jury's not being instructed on this aggravating circumstance has worked to appellant's disadvantage and therefore find this argument to be without merit.

The trial court held, in his written order:

The victim herein was killed in a manner designed to render him helpless by a blow to the head, and then, while he was in a position to perceive the imminence of death, to stab him to death through the throat in a and painful manner. slow, cruel, evidence indicated the Defendant told the victim, who was prostrate, bleeding, beaten, that he had stolen from the wrong person this time, meaning his employer. The actions of the Defendant evidence a desire to inflict mental physical pain and suffering upon his victim, as an additional form of taunting punishment beyond merely causing his death. Therefore, the Court finds that the capital felony herein was

especially heinous, atrocious, and cruel. (TR 134).

At the sentencing proceedings held February 11, 1983, the court read into the record the aggravating circumstances the court found proven. The court stated without objection by defense counsel that:

I find that the manner of killing Mr. Ihlenfeld indicates that Mr. Ihlenfeld was in a dazed and semi-conscious condition and that the actions of the defendant evidenced a desire to inflict mental and physical pain and suffering upon the victim, apparently in a desire to punish him in some way for the alleged skimming of drug profits from the business in which Mr. Hoffman was participating at the request of his employer.

I, therefore, find that the capital felony committed herein was especially heinous, atrocious and cruel.

#### (TR 1229-1230).

On appeal, Hoffman did not argue that he was denied an opportunity to rebut or challenge the sufficiency of the evidence for this factor (as now asserted), rather he complained that the trial court improperly used "this" factor as a non-enumerated aggravator, citing Elledge v. State, 346 So.2d 988 (Fla. 1977).

The issue was not properly preserved and therefore is not cognizable as herein raised. Moreover, the decision in Lankford v. Idaho, 500 U.S. \_\_\_\_\_, 114 L.Ed.2d 173, 111 S.Ct. 1723 (1991), does not constitute a change in law sufficient to overcome the procedural bar. In Lankford v. Idaho, the court addressed the issue of whether Lankford was put on notice that he was eligible for the death penalty after the prosecution announced it would not seek the death penalty. Finding a Gardner v. Florida, 430

U.S. 349 (1977), type error, the court held that "[P]etitioner's lack of adequate notice that the judge was contemplating the imposition of the death sentence created an impermissible risk that the adversary process may have malfunctioned in this case." 114 L.Ed.2d at 188-189.

Sub judice no such conclusion can be drawn. First, no bill of particulars is required for aggravating factors. Second, simply because the trial court did not instruct the jury as to this aggravator, it did not remove this aggravator as a possible aggravator after the jury's recommendation. Third, "any" intent to seek the death penalty was never waived. Fourth, the trial court provided a valid basis for imposing death. And terminally, defense counsel never objected to said finding which was read in open court although the court asked defense counsel if there was any legal cause why this sentence should not be imposed. (TR 1235).

Hoffman's suggestion that Lankford v. Idaho, supra, has any bearing on the instant case is incorrect. Lankford was not decided on the finding by the trial judge of an improper aggravating factor, rather the court concluded the defendant was not put on notice that he was being considered for the death penalty.

No relief is warranted on this procedurally barred claim.

## ISSUE IX

THE PROSECUTOR'S CLOSING ARGUMENTS DID NOT INFECT THE PROCEEDINGS WITH UNFAIRNESS AS TO RENDER THE RESULTING DEATH SENTENCE FUNDAMENTALLY UNRELIABLE AND UNFAIR

Hoffman complains that the prosecution, during his closing arguments at the quilt-innocence and penalty phases, intentionally misstated facts, testified, manipulated evidence and bolstered the veracity of the State's witnesses. None of the complained of actions were objected to at trial and although a portion of the instant complaint was raised on direct appeal, this Court found said claim to be barred because of no objection at trial. Hoffman v. State, 474 So.2d at 1181. In an effort to reach this claim, Hoffman points to the fact that "defense counsel failed to do anything about any of this. He allowed this go unchecked, interposing no presentation to objections." review of (Appellant's Brief, page 65). casual "objectionable" comments made by the prosecutor at the guiltinnocence and penalty phases of Hoffman's trial reflects that said comments were not error, did not prejudice the defendant, were fair statements of the evidence, were in rebuttal to defense comments and did not result in a substandard performance by Hoffman's trial counsel. Synthesizing this claim, Hoffman points a) the impermissible reference to Linda Sue to two issues: Parrish's murder, and b) the prosecution's explanation as to why Hoffman deserved death and White did not. The jury returned a verdict of second degree murder for Hoffman's role in the murder of Linda Sue Parrish. Evidence presented at trial revealed that when Ms. Parrish returned to the hotel room, Hoffman hit her and

then told James White that "this one is yours." The State postulated, as well as the trial court, that it did not matter whether Hoffman killed her or aided in her death, because he was a "principle" in her murder and as such her death constituted a valid basis to support an aggravating factor. In explaining why Hoffman should get the death penalty over codefendant, James White, the prosecution argued and the trial court found that the codefendants were not equal. Indeed, this Court, in its opinion in Haffman v. State, 474 So.2d at 1181-1182, held:

The finding that Hoffman iudae's previously been convicted of a violent felony was based upon Hoffman's conviction for the second degree murder of Ms. Parrish. Hoffman argues this finding is in error because the evidence showed that James White, and not he, committed the murder of Ms. Parrish. argument ignores the fact that as Mr. White's accomplice, Hoffman was a principle to the murder of Ms. Parrish. His conviction of second degree murder, standing alone is sufficient to show the existence of this aggravating circumstance.

Hoffman next complains that the trial court erred in considering the manner of Ms. Parrish's death in making his findings. The judge did not consider the manner of Ms. Parrish's death as a separate aggravating circumstance, but rather, considered it in support of his findings that Hoffman had previously been convicted of a violent felony. Although this evidence was not necessary to support the judge's finding, since a conviction for second degree murder inherently involves violence to another person, we find no error in the judge's having considered it.

With regard to whether there was any harm in the explanation of White's role in the murder, the Court observed:

Finally, Appellant argues that the sentence of death here violates his right to equal protection of law on view of the fact that

Mazzara, who procured the murders, and White, who was Appellant's accamplice in carrying them out, each received consecutive sentences of life imprisonment for their roles in the State's witness Marshall received crimes. immunity from prosecution. Appellant relies on Slater v. State, 316 So.2d 539 (Fla. 1975), his case is not like Slater. decisions of this Court make clear that it is permissible to impose different sentences on capital codefendants whose various degrees of participation and culpability are different from one another. (cite omitted). Moreover, the exercise of prosecutorial discretion in immunity granting to less culpable а accomplice, coconspirators, or aiders and abetters, does not render invalid imposition of an otherwise appropriate death sentence. (cite omitted).

Hoffman v. State, 474 So.2d at 1182.

Hoffman is procedurally barred from rearguing a claim previously raised on direct appeal. The trial court correctly concluded the amended motion was legally insufficient as to this non-cognizable claim, since Rule 3.850 will substitute as a format to raise previously raised and adjudicated claims.

### ISSUE X

HOFFMAN'S TRIAL COUNSEL WAS NOT INEFFECTIVE **DURING** THE PENALTY PHASE PROCEEDING FOR TO OBJECT TO THE JUDGE'S IMPROPER FAILING INSTRUCTION **CONCERNING PRETRIAL** THE**STIPULATIONS** OF**DEFENSE** COUNSEL AND PROSECUTOR; THE JUDGE'S IMPROPERLY EXHIBITING CONCERNING THE**MITIGATING FACTORS** BIAS *APPLICABLE* **HOFFMAN** TOMR.ANDTHE**PROSECUTORS FAILURE** TOHONORTHESTIPULATIONS HE ENTERED INTO IN VIOLATION OF THE SIXTH, EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS

The record reflects that the State stipulated that two mitigating circumstances existed; that Hoffman had no significant criminal record and that Hoffman's coconspirators, Leonard Mazzara and James Robert White, had been sentenced to consecutive

life sentences. Hoffman herein argues that because the State attempted to diminish the weight to be given these two mitigating factors, the State somehow reneged on its agreement. Moreover, he asserts that the trial judge in some way diminished the force of these mitigating factors. The complained of statements went unobjected to at trial and at the penalty phase. Without citing any authority for the proposition that the trial court must given great weight to stipulated mitigating factors or that the prosecution cannot discuss the weight to be given these mitigating factors, Hoffman divines that he was cheated of the full weight to be given said factors. The State would disagree.

With regard to the prosecutor's comments, the State agreed to stipulate to these mitigating factors. The State did not agree to the weight to be given same. That was specifically what the trial judge and the prosecution observed about the mitigating factors. The trial court correctly noted that although the State was agreeing to stipulate that Hoffman had no significant prior jury heard evidence that Hoffman repeatedly history, the testified he sold and dealt and used drugs to supplement his income and to feed his habit. As to the life sentences received by his codefendants, the stipulation was merely that the jury was instructed that they may consider the codefendants sentences in mitigation. That is exactly what both the prosecutor and the trial judge stated in their respective This issue is totally wanting. Moreover, it is procedurally barred in that as to the diminished weight to no significant criminal history, said issue could have been raised

on direct appeal. It was not. As to the equality of sentencing with regard to coconspirators, Hoffman unsuccessfully raised this point on direct appeal in a slightly different context, but nonetheless he raised it on direct appeal. See 474 So.2d at 1182.

Moreover, Hoffman's reliance on Lankford v. Idaho, supra, to suggest he was given "no notice" that the State would not adhere to the stipulation is bogus. First, Lankford is distinguishable. Second, the State did not renege on its agreement. The weight given these two factors had nothing to do with their "existence". Unlike aggravating factors, mitigating evidence need not be found beyond a reasonable doubt; rather mitigating evidence exists by "mere presentation".

The claim is legally insufficient.

### ISSUE XI

WHETHER THE AGGRAVATING FACTOR OF COLD, CALCULATED AND PREMEDITATED MURDER WAS PROPERLY APPLIED TO HOFFMAN'S CASE

The record reflects that Hoffman's Maynard v. Cartwright, 108 S.Ct. 1853 (1988), issue was not raised on direct appeal, as such, it is procedurally barred.

Hoffman's argument that **Rogers** v. **State**, **511** So.2d **526** (Fla. 1987), would change the applicability of this aggravating factor is faulty in that the **Rogers** decision spoke to the heightened premeditation that must be present to support this aggravating factor. Herein, the murder was well-planned as documented by the record. More importantly, it was also an execution-type murder, a murder for hire. As recognized in Eutzy v. State, **541 So.2d** 

1143 (Fla. 1989), Rogers does not constitute a significant change of law nor did it change the applicability of this aggravating factor to execution style/paid for hire killings. This issue is procedurally barred and the trial court did not err in summarily denying it as legally insufficient. Atkins v. State, 541 So.2d 1165 (Fla. 1989); Jones v. Dugger, 533 So.2d 290 (Fla. 1988); Daugherty v. State, 533 So.2d 287 (Fla. 1988); Poster v. State, 559 So.2d 201 (Fla. 1990); Mendyk v. State, So.2d \_\_\_\_\_ (Fla. 1992), 17 F.L.W. S21.

## ISSUE XII

WHETHER HOFFMAN'S SENTENCING JURY WAS REPEATEDLY MISLED BYINSTRUCTIONS ANDWHICH UNCONSTITUTIONALLY ARGUMENTS ANDINACCURATELY DILUTEDTHEIR OFRESPONSIBILITY FOR SENTENCING, CONTRARY TO CALDWELL v. MISSISSIPPI, 105 S.Ct. 2633 (1985), AND MANN v. DUGGER, 844 F.2d 1446 (11th Cir. 1988) (EN BANC), AND IN VIOLATION OF THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS

This Court has repeatedly held that Caldwell v. Mississippi, 105 S.Ct. 2633 (1985), claims are procedurally barred where no objection was raised on appeal. Dugger v. Adams, \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ U.S. \_\_\_\_\_\_, 109 S.Ct. 1211, 103 L.Ed.2d 435 (1989); Atkins v. State, 541 So.2d 1165 (Fla. 1989); King v. State, 555 So.2d 355 (Fla. 1990); Combs v. State, 525 So.2d 853 (Fla. 1988); Grossman v. State, 525 So.2d 833 (Fla. 1988); Demps v. State, 515 So.2d 196 Fla. 1987), and Daugherty v. State, 533 So.2d 287 (Fla. 1988). The trial court did not err in summarily denying this claim as legally insufficient. Mendyk v. State, supra, 17 F.L.W. S22.

# ISSUE XIII

WHETHER THE SHIFTING OF THE BURDEN OF PROOF IN THE JURY INSTRUCTIONS AT SENTENCING DEPRIVED HOFFMAN OF HIS CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS

Hoffman's burden shifting claim was not preserved at trial nor raised on direct appeal. As such it is procedurally barred from consideration in his Rule 3.850 motion or on appeal from any denial thereof. Mendyk v. State, 17 F.L.W. S22; Bertolotti v. Dugger, 833 F.2d 1503, 1524-1525 (11th Cir. 1989), and Kelly v. Dugger, So.2d (Fla. March 12, 1992), F.L.W. S

#### CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing, the trial court's denial of Hoffman's motion for post-conviction relief based on insufficiency.